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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE
LIMITED ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet ag at 31 March, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparzation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Also refer to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs below.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of
the Act.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presantation of the Ind A5 financial statements.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reporied in our separate Report on the
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting in determining the nature, timing and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March,
2018.

Except as indicated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs below, we believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur qualified audit opinion
on the Ind AS Financial Staternents,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. As explained in MNote 44 of the Ind AS Financial Statement, pursuant to certain
events/transactions in the Ultimate Holding Company and its subsidiaries, the erstwhile Audit
and Risk Management Committee (the 'ARMC’) of the Ultimate Holding Company decided to
carry out an independent investigation by an external legal firm on certain matters more fully
described in the said Note. The terms of reference for the investigation, the significant findings
of the external legal firm, which are subject to the limitations on the information available to
the external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimers as described in their Investigation
Report were communicated by the Board of the Holding Company to the Board of the Company
and are summarised in the said Note.

Also, as explained in the sald note:

a) As per the assessment of the Board of the Ultimate Holding Company and the Company,
based on the investigation carried out through the external legal firm, and the information
available at this stage, all identified/required adjustments/disclosures arising from the
findings in the Investigation Repart, have been made in these Ind AS Financial Statements.

b) With respect to the other matters identified in the Investigation Report, the Board intends
to appoint an external agency of repute to undertake a scrutiny of the internal controls and
compliance framework in order to strengthen processes and build a robust governance
framework. They will also assess the additional requisite steps to be taken in relation to the
significant matters identified in the Investigation Report that are related to the Company
including, inter alia, initiating an internal enquiry.

c) At this juncture the Board is unable to make a determination on whether a fraud has occurred
on the Company in respect of the matters covered in the investigation by the external legal
firm, considering the limitations on the information available to the external legal firm and
their qualifications and disclaimers as described in their Investigation Report.

d) Various regulatory authorities are currently undertaking their own investigation (refer Note
45 of the Ind AS Financial Statements), and it is likely that they nlgy__majce a determination
E_une

T

/ r_ﬁ.”'ls o =
PN

q; .

Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Ind AS Financial Staternents
of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited




—_

) -

Deloitte

Haskins & SellsLLP

e)

on whether any fraud or any other non-compliance/ illegalities have occurred in relation to
the matters addressed in the Investigation Report.

Any further adjustments/disclosures, if required, would be made in the books of account
pursuant to the above actions to be taken by the Board / regulatory investigations as and
when the outcome of the above is known.

In view of the above, we are unable to comment on the regulatory non-compliances, if any, and the
adjustments / disclosures which may become necessary as a result of further fimdings of the ongoing
or future regulatory / internal investigations and the consequential impact, if any, on these Ind AS
Financial Statements.

2.

As explained in Note 46 of the Ind AS Financial Statements, a Civil Suit has been filed by a
third party (to whom the ICDs granted by Feortis Hospitals Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the
Holding Company, were assigned (‘Assignee’ or ‘Claimant’) against various entities including
the Holding Company (together “the Defendants”), before the District Court, Delhi and have,
inter alia, claimed implied ownership of brands "Fortis®, "SRL" and “La-Femme” in addition
to certain financial claims and for passing a decree that consequent to a Term Sheet dated
December &, 2017 ('Term Sheet) between the Ultimate Holding Company and a certain
party, the Company is liable for claims cwed by the Claimant to the certain party.

The Holding Company has filed written statement denying all allegations made against it
and prayed for dismissal of the Civil Suit on various legal and factual grounds. The Holding
Company has specifically denied liability to pay any amounts to the Claimant, including its
alleged claim that the Claimant has rights over the aforesaid brands.

Whilst this matter was included as part of the investigation carried out by the external legal
firm referred to in paragraph 1 above, the external legal firm did not report on the merits of
the case since the matter was sub judice.

In addition to the above, the Ultimate Holding Company has also received four notices from
the Claimant claiming (i) Rs. 1,800.00 lacs as per notices dated 31 May, 2018 and 1 lune,
2018 (ii) Rupees 21,582.00 lacs as per naotice dated 4 June, 2018; and (iii) and Rupees
1,962.00 lacs as per notice dated 4 June, 2018. All these notices have been responded to
by the Ultimate Holding Company denying any liability whatsoever,

Separately, the certain party has also alleged rights to invest in the Ultimate Holding
Company. It has also alleged failure on part of the Ultimate Holding Company to abide by
the aforementioned Term Sheet and has claimed ownership over the brands as well,

Since the Civil Suit is sub-judice, the outcome of which is not determinable at this stage, we
are unable to comment on the consequential impact, if any, of the same on these Ind AS
Financial Statements.

As explained in Note 36E(iii) of the Ind AS Financial Statements, related party relationships
as required under Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures and the Companies Act, 2013 are
as |dentified by the Management of the Holding Company taking into account the findings
and limitations in the Investiogation Report (Refer Note 44(d) of the Ind AS Financial
Statements) and the information available with the Management. In this regard, in the
absence of specific declarations from the erstwhile directors of the Holding Company on their
compliance with disclosures of related parties, especially considering the substance of the
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relationship rather than the legal form, the related parties have been identified based on the
declarations by the erstwhile directors and the information available through the known
shareholding pattern in the entities. Therefore, there may be additional related parties whese
relationship may not have been disclosed to the Company and, hence, not known to the
Managament.

In the absence of all required information, we are unable to comment on the
completenessfaccuracy of the related party disclosures/details in these Ind AS Financial
Statements and the compliance with the applicable regulations and the consequential impact, if
any, of the same on these Ind AS Financial Statements,

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given Lo us,
except for the effect/ possible effects of the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraphs above, which are not quantifiable, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent applicable
that :

a) We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraphs above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS
Financial Statements.

b) Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraphs above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of the books.,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the Ind AS Financial Statements.

d) Except for the effects/possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraphs above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above in our opinion,
may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the Company.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on
31 March, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disgualified as on 31 March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the
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The qualification relating ta maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A", Our report expresses an adverse opinion on the Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting of the company, for the reasons stated therein.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the paragraph 2 of the
Basis of Qualified Opinion above, the Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements. Refer
note 3%(k), (c} and (d) to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer note 39
(f) to the Ind AS financial statements.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protecticn Fund by the Company. Refer note 39(g) to the Ind AS
Financial Statements,

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, which is subject to
the possible effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs of
our Audit Report and the material weakness described in Basis for Adverse Opinion in aur
separate Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repaorting.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366 W/W-100018)

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
{Membership No. 095540)
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ANNEXURE "“A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our Audit Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repcrting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SRL DIAGNOSTICS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibillties include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of relizble financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Also, refer to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs of our Audit Report.
Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance MNota”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our adverse audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Independent Auditor's Report on the
Ind AS Financial Statements
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurarice regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of tha company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Basis for Adverse Opinion

The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs of our Audit Report on the Ind
AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018, and the control weaknesses observed
in the Company’s financial closing and reporting process in regard to assessment of tha impairment
of goodwill and where the Campany did not have adequate internal controls for identifying
impairment indicators, selection and application of various inputs to be used in testing, review and
maintaining documentation for workings used in testing and concluding whether there is any
impairment, have resulted in material weaknesses in the internal financial controls over financial
reporting as the Company have not (a) adhered to their internal contral policies (b) safeguarded
their assets (c) prevented and detected possible frauds and errors (d) ensured the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and (e) prepared reliable financial information on a timely
basis.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because
of the effect/ possible effect of the material weaknesses described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion
paragraph above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not
maintained adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting and the internal controls
were also not operating effectively as of 31 March, 2018 based on the internal financial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
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internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2018 and these material weaknesses hawve, inter alia,
affected our opinion on the said Ind AS Financial Statements and we have issued a qualified opinian

on the said Ind AS Financial Statements.

Gurugram
July 6, 2018
RT/ALY 2018

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration MNo. 117366 W/W-100018)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our Audit Report of even date and except for the effects/possible effects of the
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs of our Audit Report and
the material weaknesses described in the Bacsis for Adverse Opinion in our separate Report
on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting)

(i)

(if)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vl

{vi)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in
8 phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasanable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during
the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

e} According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the title deads provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which
are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

Except for the effects / possible effects of the matters described in paragraph 3 of the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section of our Audit Report on which we are unable to comment, the
Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

{a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company's interest,

(b} The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been as per stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

Except for the effects / possible effects of the matters described in paragraph 3 of the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section of our Audit Report on which we are unable to comment, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

According to the infoermation and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits under the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the year. Hence, the provisions of clause (v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (health services, namely functioning as
diagnostic centres, clinical centres or test laboratories). We have broadly reviewed the cost
records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of

Independent Auditors Report on the
Ind AS Financial Statements
of SRL Diagnostics Private Limited
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{wii)

{viii)

(ix)

(%)

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Customns Duty, Valued Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Professional
Tax and Cess applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and there were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these dues for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

We are infarmed that the operations of the Company during the period does not give
rise to any lability for Excise duty.

() We are informed that there are no dues in respect of Sales Tax, Sarvice Tax,
Customs Duty and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2018 which have not been
deposited on account of disputes. Details of dues of income tax which have not been
deposited as on 31 March, 2018 on account of disputes are given below:

Nameof | Nature of | Forum where | Period to which l Amount (Rs.
Statute | Dues | dispute is the Amount in lakhs)

s e o e | pending Relates o
Income Tax | Income Tax* ‘ Commissioner | AY 2014-15 1,165.07%*
Act | | of Income Tax

‘ ' (Appeals)
] ! Mumbai
Income Tax | Income Tax* | Commissioner | AY 2015-16 | 3,257.22%%=
Act | | of Income Tax
{Appeals)
b= ‘ Mumbai (P
Mote:

*Represents dispute related to classification issue
** Net of Rs. 506 lakhs paid under protest
**%* Net of Rs. 815 lakhs paid under protest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not
taken any leans or borrowings from financial institution and government or has not issued
any debentures during the year.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

As explained in Note 44 of the Ind AS Financial Statements:

a} At this juncture the Board is unable to make a determination on whether a fraud has
occurred on the Company in respect of the matters covered in the investigation by the
external legal firm, considering the limitations on the information available to the
external legal firm and their qualifications and disclaimers as described in their
Investigation Report.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Ind AS Financial Statements
af SREL DMagnostics Private Limited
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[=ii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(2wi)

Gurugram
July 6, 2018

b} Various regulatory authorities are currently undertaking their own investigation (refer
Note 45 of the Ind AS Financial Statements), and it is likely that they may make a
determination on whether any fraud or any other non-compliance/ illegalities have
occurred in relation to the matters addressed in the Investigation Report.

Subject to the above, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARD
2016 Order is not applicable.

Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in paragraph 3 of the Basis
for Qualified Opinion of our Audit Report on which we are unable to comment, the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the completeness/correctness of the
disclosures/details of related party transactions in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of
CARD 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366 W/W-100018)

RASHIM TANDON

Partner

RT/ALS 2018 7/ (Membership No. 095540)
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

A ASSETS

1  Non-current assets
(2} Property, plant and equipment
{b} Cepital work-in-progress
(2] Goodwiil
(4] Other intangibée assets

(e} Intangible assets under development

(1) Firancial Assets

{i} Investments in joint ventures

{il) Loans

{iii) Other financisl assats
[9) Deferred tax assets (net)
{h) Mon-current tax assets (net)
(i} Other non-current assets

Total non - current assats

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories
(B Financial assats
(i} Trade receivables

{ii} Cash and cash equivalents

(i} Loans

{iv) Other financial assets
{c) Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets (1+2)
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

MNotes

E L < T ]
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11
12
13
14
15

(a) Equity share capital 16
(b) Other equity 17
Total equity
LIABILITIES
2  Mon-current liabilities
(2} Financial labilities
(i} Borrowings 14
(i} Other financial liabilities 19
(b} Provisions 20
(<) Other non-current liabilities 21
Total non-current liabilities
3  Cuwrrent liabilities
{#) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22
(i} Trade payables 23
(i} Other financial liabilities 24
(b} Other current liabilies 25
{¢) Provisions 26
Total current liabilitias
Taotal liabilities (2+3)
Total equity and liabilities (14+2+3)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-44

In terms of our report attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

—

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership Number: 095540

Gurugram
Date : & LY 2oIR

As at
31 March 2018

As at

31 March 2017

[Rupees in Lakhs)

{Rupees in Lakhs)

4,821.28 4,408.38
17.49 4.55
1,167.52 1,167.52
3,466,09 4,257 62
. 432.74
950,88 1,175.88
18.57 17.59
533.41 541,71
659.40 1,034.56
1,252.32 1,331.60
1,809.30 335.52
14,736.27 14,318.67
738.61 687.02
1,327.70 1,192.76
1,145.05 1,010.81
1,900.00 1,500.00
181.51 312.06
= 102.33 SH.89
5,395.20 5,201.54

20,131.47 13, 520.21

395.82 395.82
175.29 {2,069.21)
571.11 (1,673.39)
13,800.00 16,200.00
1,224.47 1,399.12
275.72 20381
131.66 132.82
& 15,431.85 17,935.75
510.44 -
1,327.74 1,392.00
1,851.27 1,443.51
187.02 182.49
252.04 239.85
4,12B8.51 _3,257.85
19,560.36 21,193.60

Iﬂiii 1.47 lﬂlﬂﬂ.gi

FOR AND OM BEHALF OF THE EOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Director

Gurugram

DIN: 07714950 (m

o \y Director

Date - £ TULY 2008
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SPRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

MNotes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
1. Revenue from operations 27 27 715,22 27 66267
2. Other income 2B 796.59 710.02
3. Total Income (1+2) 28,571.81 2B,392.69
4. Expenses
(28) Cost of reagents, chemicals and consumabies consumed 29 559584 5,653.52
{b) Cost of tests outsourced B54.93 849,89
{c) Employee benefits expense 30 4,1592.28 4,230.85
{d} Finance costs 31 2,247.85 2,483.43
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense a2 1,970.53 2,089.78
(Nl Other expenses 33 10,439,233 10,155.73
Total expenses 25,300.65 25.463.20
5. Profit before tax (3-4) 3,271.15 2,925.49
6. Tax expense
(a) Current tax [net) 34 1,065.28 707.84
(B} MAT credit 34 - (397.92)
(c) Deferred tax credit 2] {24.77) (39177
Tetal tax expenses 1,041.51 (B1.B5)
7. Profit for the year (5-6) 2,229.64 3,011.34
————— e
8. Other comprehensive income
(2) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{f) Remeasurements of tha defined benefit plans 40 22.73 (27.62)
(b} Income tax refating to items that will not be rediassifisd to profit or loss B {7.87) 9.56
Total other comprehensive income (a+b) 14.B86 (18.06)
9. Tetal cemprehensive income for the year (748) 2,244.50 2 28
10. Earnings per equity share
(2) Basic (in Rupses) 35 56.33 76.08
(b] Diluted (in Rupees) 35 56.33 76.08
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-44
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Chartered Accountants

IM TANDOM
Partner
Membership Number: 095540

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1. Cash flows from operating activities

; Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :
Depreciation and amgortisation expense
Interest Income eamed on bank deposits
Interest income earned on inter-corporate deposits
Interest income eamed on income tax refund
Interest income earned on financia! assels
Dividend income from equity instruments

Profit on disposal of property, plant ang equipment and intangible ascats [ret)

Liabillties/ provisions no longer requirad written hack
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/{ assats)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Bad debts and advances written o

Finance costs

Reversal of rent equalisation reserve

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/ decrease in loans

(Increase)) decreasze in other financial assats
(Increase)/ decrease in inventares
(Increase)/ decrease in trade recéivables
(Increase)/ decrease in other curront assebs
Increass) {decrease) in provisions

Increass/ (decreasa) in trade pavables
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Incresss/ (decrease) in other current Nabiiitles
Cash gencrated from operations

Income taxes paid

Mat cash flow from opearating activities

2. Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend Income from equity Instruments
Inter-corporate deposits given
Proceeds from redemption of Investment in Joint venture
Interest received an inter-corporate deposits
Balances held with bank as margin money
Interest received on fixed deposits

Payments for purchase of praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from dispasal of proparty, plant and equipment
Met cash flow used in investing activitics

3. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowlngs
Repayment of borrowings
Interest pald
Net cash flow used in financing activities

4. Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents [1+2+3]
5. Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

6. Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year [4+5]

| #@e accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

fﬂR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
“hartered Accountants

| “

SHIM TANDON
artner
embership No. 095540

Eurugram
ate: g TWLY 20)%

Notes Year ended
31 March, 2018

Year ended
31 March, 2017

(Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

3,271.15 2,929,459
32 1,970.53 2,089,778
1) (34.82) [52.89)
2B (233.50) {14812
28 {46.73) (78.57)
2B (4.05) (3.65)
28 {100,00) {150.00)
8 (98.86) (29.34)
2B (145.28) (117.38)
40 22.73 (27.62)
33 178.88 164.52
- 6.42
31 2.131.03 2,410.54
= {16.69)
6,911.10 6,976.59
(0.98) {10.81)
0,85 {150.86)
{51.59) {0.49)
(313.B5) {126.35)
{1.279.01) 71.85
84,10 63.74
B1.00 50.81
(171.45) 2.02
.37 {34.0M
5,263.65 6,842.43
(588.21) (971.04)
4,675.44 5871.39
248 100.00 150.00
- (1,900.00}
5 225.00 -
233.50 96.30
7 7.35 {112y
34,82 53.02
(1,691.26) {578.97)
173.55 473.76
(917.04} {1,707.01)
22 - 1,500.00
18 {2,400.00) {3,672.43)
{1,734.60) (2,240.34)
(4,134.60) (4,412.77)
(376.20) (248.39)
1,010.81 1,258_20
12 634.61 1,010.81
1-44

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Gurugram
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

A. Eqguity share caplital

Issued and Faid up Capital at 1 April 2016
Changes In equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31 March 2017
Changes in equity shere capital during the year
Balance at 31 March 2018

. Other equity

Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2016

Prafit for the year

Other comprehensive income (net of income tax)
Total comprehensive Income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (net of income tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2018

Notes Amount
___(Rupees in Lakhs)
16 395.82
395.82:
395.81:=
Amount

{Rupaes in Lakhs)

(5,062.49)

17 3011.34

17 {18.06)
2,993.28

(2,069.21)
17 2,229.64
17 14.86
175.29

175.29

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-44

In terms of our report attached
FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

=

RASHIM TAMDON
Partner
Membership No. 095540

Gurugram

Date: & JULY ZolR

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Director -
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i F



S

| i !

[

SEL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 (a) General information

SRL Diagnostics Private Limited ("the Company’) is a private limited Company and incorporated in India
having registered office at 74, Paschim Marg, Opposite C bolck market, Vasant Vihar, New Delhi -
110057. The Company is engaged in the business of maintaining and managing clinical reference
laboratories, to provide testing and diagnostics on human beings, in the field of both pathology and
radiclogy.

1 (b) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

(1)

(i)

Ministry of Corporate affairs has notified Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers:

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Ind AS 115, the core principle of the new
standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with
customers. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

= Retrospective approach- Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

» Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initizlly applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The
Group is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and its impact on the financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration:

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendment is effective from 1 April
2018. The Company is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 21 and its effect on the financial statements.

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses:

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits
and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in
opening retained earnings (or in ancther component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the
change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief
must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. These amendments
are not expected to have material effect on Company's financial statements.

Significant Accounting policies

Statement of compliance =
The financial statements of the C ry=have been prepared In accordang In otified under

the Companies (Indian Accounti ules, 2015, _r_:_l’E Mew Dethi)s
LLE LG
PRt B ity
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

2.3

2.4

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting pericd, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would consider those characteristics when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and,/ or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share based payment that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to the
fair value but not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, ar 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are cbservable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability.
MNen-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset {or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Company is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of an
investment, in a subsidiary or joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measurad at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recognised.

i

fﬁ}a{é\@qg it is acting as
ncipa f*i;gjgll its revenue

The Company assessed its revenue arrangements against specific criteri
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as
arrangements.

&\ New Delhi) |
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2.6

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Income from services

Medical testing charges consists of fees received for various tests conducted in the field of pathology and
radiclogy and are recognised on accrual basis when the reports are generated and released, net of
discounts, if any.

Management fees

Revenue from management fees is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements, as and when services are rendered.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the sharehoider's right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from the financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured rellably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the sffective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net earrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the jease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Company is the lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased items are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense In
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Leases where the lessor effectively transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as finance leases and are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of
lease are capitalized.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions,

At the end of each reporting period-

i) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

iy Mon-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

i) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fo
retranslated,

=

___r_ﬁ_,./

b\
4]
Exchange differences on maonetary items are recognised in the Statement of | ng ﬂ'nJ}the period

in which they arise.




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2.7

2.8

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred,

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions,

The Company operates a defined benefit plan viz,, gratuity. For defined benefit retirement benefit plans,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets
(excluding net interest), is reflected immed iately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected im mediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit llability or
asset,

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

(a) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements):

(b) net interest expense or income; and

{c) remeasurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the statement of profit and loss
in the line item "Employee benefits expense’ and *Finance Cost” respectively. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the company can no langer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the company recognises any related restructuring
costs,

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recoanised in respect of gther long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the company in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. The Company treats accumulated gy&:_ékp_écged to be carried
forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefit for measu purposes. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, to t tent_it ﬂqe% not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the rep ML o
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2.9

2.10

Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. Accumulated leave, which is
expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit, The
Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitiement that hag accumulated at the reporting date.

Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance is a defined contribution
scheme. The Company has no other obligations, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund
and employee state insurance. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the scheme as an
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. The current tax Is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
The company recognizes MAT credit available as 2n asset only to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e. the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an
asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the "MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does nat
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it Is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liabilities is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,

Property, plant and equipment {PPE)

Property, plant and equipments are statad at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and the cost comprises
the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working.condition for its intended
use, féj‘n_’-_’i B,

£ "

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equip
only if it increases the future benefits fro the existing asset beyond its p
performance. All other expenses includi

standard of
and cost of

Waystoxday repair and mainte
iy




e

[ C—

2.11

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
N?I_ES_T'D THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN_:I'S FDR_TiE_YEﬁR EHD_ED 21 MARCH 2018

replacing parts, are charged to the statermnent of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prascribed in Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013, The useful life of the assets has been assessed after considering the nature,
the estimated usage and the operating conditions.

The estimated useful life of Froperty, plant and equipment, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives (in Years)
Laboratory equipment- Pathology 13 years

Laboratory equipment- Imaging 10 years

Building 60 years

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Furniture and fixtures- signage 5 years

Vehicles 6 to B years
Computers and accessories 3 years

Air conditioners 8 years

Leasehcld improvements are depreciated over the pericd of the lease of > years which is the expected
useful life, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of assets. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant, equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recagnised in profit and loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately:

Intangible assets includes Softwares, licences and assay tests developed. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

dwill
The cost of goodwill acquired in the nature of purchase is carried at cost. The goodwill is not amortised
and tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication that it may be impaired,

Software;
Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring
the specific software to its intended use. These costs are amortised over a period of three years being the

useful life as estimated by the management.

Trademark:

The cost of trademark acquired in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Trademarks are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company
uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not- wreed.ten years from the
date when the asset is available for use or the primary period of the b acquisition agreement,
whichever is less. Such trademarks are tested for impairment annually, ej individualiy\or at the cash-
generating unit level. o i
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
Intangible assets Useful lives in years
Software and other intangible asssts 3 years
Derecognition of Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An
impairmeant loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

The inventories of materials representing reagents, chemicals and consumables are valued at lower of cost
and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges in bringing the
goods to their present location and condition, including octroi and other levies, transit insurance and
receiving charges. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consider ;bcﬁ Eeql.um:l to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into acmunt/fhe nsks dx uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash F < estimated 'npa settle the

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

v sidwhen the jeffect of the
time value of money is material). oF '.I'II—IE_M\\\ [\
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2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is & possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occcurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the ohligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare caces
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the business of mezintaining and managing clinical reference laboratories, to
provide testing and diagnostics on human beings, in the field of both pathology and radiclogy. As the
Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and geocgraphical segament i.e
pathelogy and radiclogy services, there are no disclosures required to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108
on 'Segment Reporting’,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect
of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
Year.,

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax
effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or
income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been Issuad on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity sharss are
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted for potential equity shares as appropriate.

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the
extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
{with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the
available information.

o,

Investments in joint ventures f:gﬂ‘:‘ s \

= b
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whemb_ghe parties that have ]o[nf ﬁtrcli]rn‘ﬁtﬁe)grrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint ﬂgﬁgnmﬁ{t\ Joint control is tﬁé’ ntr'sah::l:u,\'.lnliﬂr greed sharing of
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

contral of an arrangement, which exists oniy when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.,
Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Financial instrumeants

Financlal assets and financial lizbilities are recogrised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as #ppropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised Immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except
for financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows: and
" the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or
lass on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whase objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. s
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. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to n:a/.-r.h flows that are solely

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FYTOCI financial assets. For t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differances on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and
other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for financial assets through other comprehensive income’,
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is
reclassifled to profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and af
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition,

Income Is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income”
line itern.

Financial instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVYTOCI) are measured 2t fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or financial instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financlal assets at FVTPL are measured at fzir value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other
income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investmeant and the amount
of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at
FWTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increa gnificantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial ins aﬁ'ﬁgﬁﬁgmount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are of the '-Eiféitime expected
credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result [[f: fault; gccurs | within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that af@\predicte /Over the next 12
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If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model
in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the

previous pericd, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default pecurring on the financlal instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of sighificant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Eaor trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company slways measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. z

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as perrnitted under ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied
to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the Balance Sheet.

perecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises & financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 1f the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues o recognise the financial asset and alsp recognises a collateralised porrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference petween the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity iz recognised in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.9. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no jonger recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to It
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised In other comprehensive incomea is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency isd % ;

and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. FOE fRreigfiGrre
financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange différences a
or loss since there are no designated hedging instruments in a hedging an_l_]i_
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Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Company rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if;

. it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term: or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is & derivative that is not designated and effective as a hadging instrument.

Financial liabllities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and Is included in the ‘Other incoma’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair valus of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create ar enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, In which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The
remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that zre recognised in other comprehensive income
are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group that are
designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs
of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measure ﬁg’@éiﬁﬁaj&values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: / {-r__‘ff,f —-ﬁ_-\:;_x,\w
':.'_. L1 ] |i
. the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with im{)ﬁl’{ﬂﬁntfﬁh gm'e ents of Ind AS
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3.1

. the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of Income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment reguirements of Ind AS
109; and
. the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 1B,
Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting peried, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in "Other income’,

The fair value of financial lisbilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FYTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabllity and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial llability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (refer note 3.2 below),
that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

(a) Accounting of reagent rental equipments:

The Company has entered into agreements with certain suppliers for,
part of the agreement, the Company has the right to use equipme
of charge subject to purchase of minimum committed quantities of

“‘%iiﬁ@gagents / kits. As
pplied b suppliers free
tkitsii— )I

The cost of reagents that includes the cost of rental of the equipme ‘cost of material

consumed, king N
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The directors of the Company has assessed the conditions as specified in the Ind AS -17, "Leases"”
for determining whether the said arrangement is under operating lease or Finance lease. Basis the
evaluation, the arrangements have been classified by the Company as compesite lease, which
cannet be reliably segregated in operating lease and finance lease. Hence, the Company has
recorded the purchase of reagent in consumption cost with no element of rental /interest therein.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Allowances for doubtful debts

The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of
trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of
factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based an higher of value-in-use and fair
value less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash generating
unit or groups of cash-generating units which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition
and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes,

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key
assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include
projected free cash flows, estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and
estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent
management’s best estimate about future developments.

The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2018 was Rs. 41,822.64 Lakhs (31 March 2017:
41,822.64 Lakhs) after an impairment loss of Rs. Nil was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (31 March 2017: Rs. Nil), refer note 6(a).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

The amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income
or if tax regulations undergo a change.

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (*PPE")

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each reporting
period. The factors such as changes in the expected level of usage, technological developments and
product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of
these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could be revised and thereby could have
an impact on the profit of the future years.

Impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrying value of investments carriad at amortised cost annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication for impairment. If the recoverab amount.is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for. gl Ny

Defined benefit plans M Delhi}!

enefit obligation ('DBO")
S An actudrial valuation

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defifed’
are based on actuarial valuation usin -projected unit credit met
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
Include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and maortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit abligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible
temporary differences can be realized. The Group estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based
on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s
expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets, Changes in these
estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets
and thereby the tax charge in the Consclidated Statement of Profit or Loss,

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments
in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant
uncertainty.

Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the
valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Fair value measurement of derivative and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation technigues. This involves significant judgements in sele r-of.a method in making
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing thie-Bdlance Sheet date and in
identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair value whenog wtd?\ﬁi‘g ige of fair value
measurements are possible, f ol i — 1




B o Adanead augl wewad Jawlinba ssay ) sjuaumpabie WYY JO irag oLy s

\_‘ﬂ\.r__\\u _.f....s.

__ = _ U unoggy ,c EGZIFY LCRERY 2 ta +v) _ﬂaﬂ
& -..,. i S0 (B
____u_ Feiayeyy ..r_ 55w B LT (@) ss2 Ly aom (@il
BE'BOF'Y BLIZE F (¥} je30g
m.t w_ B00Z1T STELE syuswdinba a0
S8EL E¥L0T CETRIVER S T
T6'EL 9565 SRINTNY PUE 3503|LLIN
L£9'69 [T saayndiuesy
PELPE G OFE . shupipng
—— 0L°'366"E 05" BLY'E Juswdinba pue Juely
\.\\..n....nr.lrrr;.. BES B8 PUE| playEaly
& — Fm/ ZEn ¥Z'0 syoog
x”_u_\\ I..J/\W. 20601 ST'SEE SlUBaALIdW| proyasEaT
__w £ . i ! (suxey sy
| B uj saadny) u] sandny)
\ LTOT W3eW T GTOT WoaeMW TE
e sy ® sy

'S5RA| BuRuy Jepun jlB) Jou op sjuswdinba asay) ey pap
SIBEINE LS oy SIUDBRD) 3SEYLING 0] JUSLLTIEILDD ¢ Ljem Aued

seaaliosd ) Yiom Epdes Juswdinba pue Jued ‘Apradosd Jo enjea BujAued 19y () £

"PUB| POLGY SU1 03 {17 Jem2 SEY AUBDWOD DY) 18Y] paww Buod oy Juswsheuew a) (9}

MRUOD PUE SIEE3) JIPUN JUDUISSHSE UB 3PEW Sey Aurdwo) aly) ‘Sjuaiiamfie ay] wnoyinady] sieeddns
G BY} ) $3503 40 Bey “Sia)ddns Ag papiacsd Juawdinba AI0je10qe) agnga 10U SBop ¢ ‘o S0N (&)

=:a]0N
“HC e v STFIE EWLOT 9565 6L 6L GEOFE 09 BL9E [Ta3 vE0 9T'SEE STOT USIFW TE 18 5y
BEBOF F BO'GET CHLL 16'EL L5'Gh ¥ AFE 04 BESE 24’5 ZE'D ZI'E0T LTOT UURj TE I8 Sy
Junowe Bujiuey
_9ETORE ET'BEIL 69795 FE G ¥9'801 G 51 9LPYEE - £L°0 TLE8T B10Z U2IEW TE JESY
GO TEE ) BZ 1T ] 550 : E9EST - % SH3S5R J0 [BSOUSIp Ud PEIEL)L
SE'GEOT 19 F S5 1T B0'EE EL'EE ks 69°EHR 5 80'0 EZ'E asuade uonmzasdag
08°S¥0'E ¥ 68 [ ESVE 0T've BEET DEFILE - S1°0 B EL L10Z Y3JBW TE 1€ Sy
FL ] k'S 09'El 00 T . BE'TOR - 220 TS MBRER I3 | 1P U0 pRRUUIE
LETSE'T Ta'Th 1857 S5°RT g 3 B0 FTHD'T ET'D PEER esuadya vopenaudag
0159k 6B 15 12'EE n1at T EY 059 LOWLT'T ¥Z'0 HO'BE STOT [1edy T e sy
UDIIESTIOWY Suopleaasdag
P FEAR GZEFE T FOT 06 B80T EF 98T TE'DI9E 9L EED L g5 L0 LUTEE BTOZ U2.BH TE I¢ 5y
BFL5E TZFr Frda] oRB oF T DECEE - - E s{esodu g
S 2BS"T LT TbT ZI'ZS 916 96CH a BLOE0"T z = LE0TE EHOBIPDY
BT PSR4 EE'SIE LEFET ¥EE0T LOERT TE O9L OFEIL'S s ] ~ OS5'CET £T0Z YaIeM TE 18 5y
O&FTTL [T 93°EE EET BE '+ - FET00°1 - 960 P s|a=ods) g
BO'BLE O4°EE £8°21 F191 0L'TE - LE'T5E - - SE'ST SUnHIppY
686818 BT '#0E OE0eT £L°P6 £5°911 CETDSE TH#ESD L B#'S EbT 69'E0Z 9TOT pady T 32 sy
1502 PRLUDDH 10 1507
[mofag q
suausdpnba SEIyan SoUnxly puE usedinba  ajou saged) pue) SJUBUBAGTLY
1ejog =11 4] 030N BANGILING n._ﬂu._._...__._._ﬁu_ sEuIpjing Pue Jue|d Ployag0g S¥oOo[ Ployssea

SUHET U] seadng )

swdinba pue jueyd ‘Aupdoid (2] £

SINTHAIVIE VISNVNIT THI 36 T6Vd SHIRG07 EIT0H

QILIWIT LVATHA SILLSONDYIO THS



E . O

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 [a) Goodwill and other intanaible assets

(Rupess in Lakhs)

Goodwill Softwares Trademarks Toatal
Cost or deemed cost
Ag at 1 April 2016 1,776,93 68,95 5,820.44 5.889.39
Additions - 120,81 37.76 158.57
Disposals - 1.72 & 1.72
As at 31 March 2017 1,776.93 188.04 5 858.20 6,046,244
Additions - 79,14 - 759.14
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 1,776.93 267.18 5,858.20 6,125.38
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1 April 2016 609,41 4291 90&.73 951.64
Amorhisation expense - 17.50 B1%9.91 B37.41
Eliminated on disposal of assets - 0.43 - 0.43
As at 31 March 2017 G009, 41 55.98 1,728.64 1,788.62
Amartisation expanse - 64,56 80601 87067
Eliminated on disposal of assets . = = -
As at 31 March 2018 609.41 124.64 2,534.65 2,659.25
LCarrying amount
g gt 31 March 2017 1.167.52 120.06 4,129.56 4 257 63
As at 31 March 018 1.167.52 142,54 337355 3,466.09

{b) Net carrying value of Goodwill, intangible assets and intanglble assets under developmant

Carrying amounts of :

Gaodwill
Softwares
Trademarks

Intangibbe Assets under development

Notes:-

As at

(Rupenes in Lakhs)

Az a5t

(Rupees in Lakhs)

1.167.52 1.167.52
142 .54 128.06
3,323.55 4,129.56
4.633.61 5.425.14
- 43.74

— 463361 =020 5468.83

Acquired goodwill includes the excess consideration paid by SRL Diagnostics Private Limited on the net assets of diagnostics businesses acquired by it

during prévious years,

Goodwill acquired separately are tested for Impairment annually at the year-end oF more frequenty If there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired. The Company considers the whole diagnestics business of SRL Diagnostic as a single C5U and hence, the impairment of goodwill acuired
separately Is tested on total diagnostic business of SRL Diagnostics Brivate Limited.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from valua-in-use calculationg. The key assumptisns for the valus-in-use ealeulations are those

regarding tha discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs durin
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks
based on industry growth forecasts, Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices a

market.

e
o

i /‘5 Raresgd

ACCount g,

g the yaar; Management estimates discount

“to the CGLE. The growth rates are
exfraetElions of future changes In the
o




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ —— S <

Az at As at

{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees In Lakhs)

Investments in joint ventures (measured at cost)

Unguoted

Investments in DDRC SREL Diagnostics Private Limited

Eguity instruments

250,000 (31 March 2017: 250,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid 950.88 950.88
LR

Preference shares

Ml {31 March 2017 2,250,000 zero coupon preference shares of Rs, 10 - 225.00
each, Tully paid up *

Total aggregate unguoted Investments 950.88 1,175.88
Aggregate carrying value of ungoted investments 950.88 1,175.88

*The zero coupon preference shares are redeemable In one or more tranches at any time before axpiry of 20 yvears from the date of allctment (i.e.
20 years from 2nd July, 2010] at the option of the subsidiary Company SREL Diagnostics Private Limited. Zero coupon preference shares of Rs. 125
Lakhs were redeemed on 29 August 2017 and balance Rs. 100 Lakhs were redesmed on 12 October 2017.

Loans (a3t amortised cost)

Loan to employess {Ureecured, considerad good) 18.57 17.59
Total _ 18.57 17.59
Other financial a=sets (at amortised cost)

{Unsecured, considersd agood)

Security deposits B527.67 528.62
Balances with banks heid 25 margin money (refer note below) 5.74 13.08

EEE— - - 1L 1 N . ) P 4

Mote:- Balances with banks held as margin money of Rs 5.74 Lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs 13.00 Lakhs) are pledged against bank guarantee issued
by bankers on behalf of the Company.

Total

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assat 463.35 401.32
Deferred tax liability (45.12) -
Minimum alternate tax credit 241.17 633.24
Total 659,40 1,034.56

~ Recognlsed In other

As at
comprehensive

31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Recognised in

Movement in deferred tax assets profit or loss

income
Deferred tax asset
Tax impact of expenses charged in the financial
statements but allowable as deductions in future 53.50 47.08 - 100.58
vears under income tax
Provision for doubtful cebts and advances 173,33 2.57 - 175.90
Provislon for lease equalisations 52.16 (5.52) - 46.65
Provision for gratulty 70.53 33.70 (7.87) 56.36
Provision for compensated absences 45.27 [1.41}) - 43.B6
Total deferred tax asset 394,79 76.42 {7.87) 463.35
Deferrad tax liability
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of property, plant and equipment and 6.53 (51.65} - {45.12)
intangible assets
Total deferred tax liability 6,53 [51.65) e (45,12}
Deferred tax asset [ Net) 401,32 24.77 (7.87) 418,23
MNon-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provigion for tax as at 31 1,292.33 1,331.60

March 2018 Rs. 2,357.46 Lakhs, 31 March 2017 Rs. 1,291.20 Lakhs)

Other non-current assets (unsscured, considered good)

Capital advance 84.71 21.10
Prepald expenses —. 2.11 3.42
Deposit against cases with income tax i3 (Fefer note 39(c) and 1,722.48 311.00
Total N, 1,809.30 335.52




SRL DIAGNOSTICS FRIVATE LIMITED

HOTES FORMING FAET 0F TH7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LY
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10.

i1.

(a)

{t)

(]

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Inventories (iower of cost and net realisable value)

Reagents, chemicals and consumables (refer note below) 738.61 B87.02
Total 738.61 G87.02
Note:

The Company's business does not involve any conversion process far materials, Reagents and chemicals are used to conduct varlous pathology and
radiology tests and are consumed in the process, Other consumables represent various Rems of stores and spares psed In normal course of
business. The mode of valuation of inventory has been stated in Note 2,13,

As at Ag at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Trade receivables
Secured, considered good 107.98 104.78
Unsecurad, considered good 1,148.43 1,023.69
Doubtul 405.72 448.79
Less: Allowance for deubtful debts (expected credit loss allawance) (405.72) (448.79)
Tatal !.1_256.41 1,128.47
Due frem related parties (refer note 36) 71.29 64.29

Zh 1,327.70 1,182.76

The average credit periog on sale of services ranges from 30 to 60 deys, N interest ks charged an the trade receivables for the amount overdus
above the credit period, There are no customers which represent mare tan 5% of the total balance of trade receivables,

The maximum credit exposure is fimited to Rs. 1,148.43 lakhs (31 March 2017; Rs. 1,023.69 |akhs). The concentration of credit risk is limited dus
Lo the Tact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for recognition and measurement of impairment loss
towards expected risk of delays and default in collection. The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit Ipss
allowance based on a provision matrix. Management makes specific provision In cases where there are known specific risks of customer default in
making the repayments. The provision matrix takes Into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward- locking Information. The
expeited credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the deys the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The
provision matrix at the end of the reporting periad is as follows:

Ageing Expected credit loss (%)
0-1 vear 0%%-99%
1-2 years Q9%:-100%
2-3 vears 99%:-100%
Above 3 Years 99%:-100%
Age of recelvables
0-1 year 1.537.99 1,294.47
1-2 years 73.80 106.28
2-3 years 5R.09 114.57
Above 3 Years 54,54 126.38
1,734.42 1,641.70
HMovement in the expected credit loss allowance
Balance at the beginning of the year 448,79 393.20
Mavement in credit ioss allowance on trade recelvables calculated at
lifetime expected credit lossas® 207} 35,58
Balance at end of the year 406.72 448,79

* Induding bad debts netted of from provision for doubtful debt of Rs. 175633 Lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs. 92.90 Lakhs).

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- on current accounts 1.075.89 964.05
Chegues on hand 32.58 2.55
Cash on hand 36 58 44,31
Cash and cash aquivalents as per Balance sheet 1,145.05 1,010.81
Cash credit facilities from banks (refer note 221 (S10.44) -

634.61 1,010.81

Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows

Channred | |
-"ll'-‘ct-un:az:qg)r'_,v

A
= v



LI —

SRL DIAGMOSTICS PETVATE LIMITED

MOTES FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13,

14,

15.

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Loans (&t amartised cost)

Inter-corporate deposits

= Unsecured consdered geod (refer note below) 1.900.00 1,500.00
= Droubiful 2950 28.50
Less: Aflowance for bad and doubtiul deposits (29.50) (#9.50)
Total LEOO.O0 _ 190000
Mote:

a) Inter corporate deposit as at 31 March 2018, indudes Rs. 400 Lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs. 400 Lakhs) given to Fortis Healthare Limited, carries
interest @ 11.5% is repayable on demand. The loan has been given to meet the warking capital requirement,

b) Inter corporate deposit as at 31 March 2018, includes Rs. 1,500 Lakhs (31 March 2017 Rs. 1,500 Lakhs) which was given o Bast Health
Managament Private Limited as advance far services, but is now refundable, The advance carrles Interest @ 12.5% is repayable on demand. {also
refer note 44 d}

Other financial assets (unsecured)

Security deposits (deubtful) 5.38 538

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful deposits (5.38) [5.38)
Advances

-Considered gead {refer note 36 for deposits recoverable from related 31.50 171.31

parties as at 31 March 2018 fs. 18.74 Lakhs , as at 31 March 2017 s,

18,74 Lakhs)

-Cansidered doubtful {refer note 36 for depesits recoverable frem relates 61.79 17.18

parties as at 31 March 2018 Rs, 24.97 lekhs |, a2 at 31 March 2017 Rs, Bl

Less; Provision for deubtful advances (61.79) {17.18)
Unbilled revenue (considered good) 98,19 BE.33
Interest accrued on intor-corporate deposits (considered good) 51.82 51.82
Total 181,51 _ 31206
Other current assets (unsecured, considerd gaod)

Prepaid expenses 787 98,89
Advances to supplier 24.368 2
Total 102.33 SB.E9




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATE MENTS

16.

fa)

b

=

(e)

i7.

Equity share capital Asg at

31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2018

Number of shares  {Rupees in Lakhs} Number of shares (Rupees in Lakhs)
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000,000 SO0.00 5,000,000 500,00
Total 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up with voking 3,958,200 395.82 3,958,200 39582
rights
Total —_— 3,858,200 395.82 2958200 = 30583
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at tha beginning and at the end of the vear:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 21 March 2018

Mumber of shares (Rupees in Lakhs)

Number of shares (Rupees in Lakhs)

Equity shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the yaar 3,958,200 395.82 3,958,200 395.82
Issued during the year X . ol -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3,958,200 395.82 3,958,200 395.82

Tarms/rights sttached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share, In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential emounts. The distribution will be in propostion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Details of Shares hald by holding company:

£5 at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Mame of share holder Number of shares % of helding Numkber of shares % of holding
SEL Limited, the halding company (including it's
naminess)
Equity shares of Bs. 10 each 3.958.200 100% 3,958,200 100%
Other equity
As at Az at

Retained Earnings (refer Mote below)

MNote :

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Profit attributable to owners of tha Company
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benafit
obligation net of income tax
Balance st the end of the year

31 March 2018 21 March 2017

{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lykhs)

175,29 (2,069.21)
—_ 375,29
12,069.21) (5.062.49)
2,229.64 3,011.34
14.86 {18.08)
175.29 (2,060.21)




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

18.

19,

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

« 25,

Lo S e —

26,

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Borrowings
Term Lean (non-curment)
- from related party (Unsecured) {refer note below) 13,B00.00 16,200.00
Tatal _13,800.00 _ —  16,200.00
Motes:
Total Loan as at 31 March 2018, Rs. 14,800 Lakhs (31 March 2017, Rs. 17,200 Lakhs] from its helding company carries interest @ 129 p.a.. Qut
of the total term loan balance outstanding as at 31 March 2018, Rs, 1,000 Lakhs (Rs 1,000 Lakhs as at 31 March 2017) repayable on demand to
the helding Company and hence shawn as other current lizbilities, {Refer note 24)
COther financial liabilities
Payable towards purchase of other Inténgible assets 1,224.47 1,399.12
Total 1,234.47 1,399.12
Provisions
Provision for gratuity (refer note 409 £75.72 203.81
Total 275.72 203.81
Other non-current liabilities
Provision for lease equalisation 131.66 132.82
Total 131.66 132,82

Current liabilities

EBorrowings (at amortised cost)

Loan repayable on demand (Secured)

- Cash credit facility from bank (refer note below) 510.44 -
Total 510.44 =
Mote:

Cash credit facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank Uimited is secured by way of first charge on the subsidiary company'’s entire current assets. They
are further secured by way of a second charge on the subsidiary company’s fixed assets, exdluding speclfic vehicles and equipments financed by
the bodies corporate and others, both present and future, Cash credit facility to the extent of Rs 1500 Lakhs is guaranteed by SRL Limited, The
Cash Credit is repayable on demand and carried intersst rate of 10.35%-10.65% p.a. during the year. The Cash credit limit is Rs. 1,500 Lakhs
out of which Rs. 510,44 Lakhs is utilised as per book balance as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 Rs. 57.05 Lakhs). Actual utilisation of cash
credit facility is Rs. 385,72 Lakhs as at 31 March 2018 {31 March 2017 Rs. Nil).

Trade pavables

Trade payables (refere note 43) 1,327.74 1,392.00
Total 1,327.74 1,392.00
Other financial liabilites (at amortised cost)

Deposits from customers 107.98 104.78
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note no 18) 1,000.00 1,000.00
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (refer note 38) 396.43 -
Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 346.86 338.73
Total 1,851.27 1,443.51
Other current liabilities

Provision for lease equalisation 1.85 17.89
Statutory dues payables 185.17 164.60
Total 187,02 182,49
Provisions NG

Prowision for compensated absences 125.51 130.82
Provision for ESIC (refer note 39(b)) 126.53 105.03
Total 252,04 239,85




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE

27.

28.

30,

31.

33.

Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Total

Othar income

Enterest income eamned on financial assets that are not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

- Bank deposits

- Inter-corporate deposit

- Income tax refund

- Cthers

Dividend income from equity instrument
(Jaint ventures - jeintly controlled entities)

Profit on gisposal of property, plant and equipments and sther intangible assets (net)
Liabilities/ provisions na longer required written back

Others

Total

Cost of reagents, chemicals and consumables consvmed

Inventories at the beginning of the yESr
Add: Purchases during the year {net}

Less:! Inventories at the end of the year
Total

Emplovee benefits expence

Salaries and waoes

Contribution ta provident and ather funds (refer note 40)
Gratuity expense (refer note 40)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance costs

Interest cost on:

= Loans from related party

= Others

Interest cost on net defined banefit obligation {refer note 40
Other finance costs

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipmeant
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent and hire expenses (refer note 37)
Rates and taxes

Insurances

Repairs and maintenance:

- Plant and equipment

- Bullding

- Othars

Donation

Advertisement and sales promation
Pastage and courier

Travelling and convevance

Printing and stationery

Communbcation

Legal and professional expenses (refer note below for payment ot auditors)
Professional fees to doctors -
Provision for doubtful debts and advancos

Corporate socizl responsibility expenses (refer note 41)
Miscellaneous expenses
Tatal

MNote: Payment to the auditors comprises {n
1} For audit

i} For taxation mattars

i} For reimbursement of axpenses

Year ended
31 March 2018

Year ended
31 March 2017

({Rupees in Lakhs)

(Rupees in Lakhs)

2777522 27,682 67
27,775.22
34.82 52.89
233.50 148.12
46,73 78.57
4.05 3.65
100.00 150.00
93.86 29.34
145.26 117.38
133,37 130.07
796.50 710,02
687.02 68653
. 5,647.43 5,654.01
6.334.45 6,340.54
738.61 687,02
5,595.84 5653.52
3.583.68 3.688.11
276.16 247.04
101.54 £4.00
230,90 231.70
4,192.28 4,230,85
1,952.98 2,209.64
178.05 182.26
30.75 28.46
BE.O7 63.07
2,247.85 2,483.43
1,099.85 1,252.36
870.68 B37.42
1,970.53 2,089.78
627.53 G16.16
1.156.97 1.017.53
2561 34.51
12,13 11.74
622.36 595.91
76.34 69.11
145.05 125.21
0.46 0.24
235.25 27B.28
B1.B7 69.16
350.77 417.69
41587 442 57
101.54 89.71
757.80 0543
5.377.22 5.050.47
178.88 170.94
3.98 -
269.50 260.37
10,439,723 10,155.73
46,26 40.00
4.00 4,00
1.50 1.50
SL.76 45.50




SRL DIAENCSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

— NOTES FORMING PART CF HE FINANCIA( STATFMENTS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
34, (a) Income taxes recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current tax
=In respect of the eurrent year 1,113.16 707.84
-In respect of prier vears {46.88) .
-Minimurm altemative tax {MAT) - (397.92)
1,066,728 209.92
Deferred tax
=In respect of the current year [16.90) (401.33)
Total tax expenses 1,049.38 {91.41)

35

{b) The income tax expense for the year reconcilied to the accounting profit as fallows:

Profit before tax 3,271.15 —_— 2.979.49

Income tax expenses caleulated 25 per fax rates of Income tax act (34.608%) 1,097.87 1,013.84
Effect of expenses that are not deductable in determining taxable profit .42 97.58
Effect of Income that s exempt from taxation (34.61) {61.95)
Effect of unused tax losses not recognised as deferred tax asgets = (790.08)
Effect of previously unrecognised and unused tax losses and deductible temporary diferances - (350.80)
now recognised as deferred tax socats

1.100.48 {21.41)
Effect due to change In future tax rate considerad now in deferred tax (4.22) -
Adjustment recognised in the current year In refation to the current bax of prior years (46.83) =
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 1,049.38 (91.41)
{c) Unrecognised temorary differences
Temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures for
which deferred rax liabilities heve net been recognised,
Undistributed eamings
DORC SRL Diagrostics Private Limited 956.89 625 31

§56.89 625.31

Unrecognised deferred tax liabillties refating to the above temporary differences 334.37 216,41

Joint ventures of the Company have undistributed eamings of Rs. 956,89 Lakhs { 31 March 2017, Rs 625.31 Lakhs), which, if pald out of dividends,
would be subject to tax. An assessable ternporary diferrence exists, but ro deferred tax liability has been recognised as the Company is able to

(d} On 29 March 2018, the Indlan Corporate tax rate were changed from 34.6508% to 34.944% and substantively enacted and will ba effective from
1 April 2018. As a result, the relevant deferred tax balances have besn remeasured,

Earninas per share (EPS)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 2,229.64 3,011.34

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic and i ; | EPS [Mos,) 3,058,200 3,958,200
o S

Nominal value per share (Rupees) ,-"{{_.f? \_:-‘_;J W 10.00 10.00

Earnings per share {Basic and Diluted) {Rupees) f.m New Delhil = ) 56.33 76.08
ﬂ B = | LY -
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NOTES FORMING FPART OF TH UL EINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Related Party Disclosures

A. MNames of related parties

{1} Related parties where control exists Mature of relationship
- Fartis Healthcare Limited Uitimate halding company
= SRL Limited Halding company

[if) Related parties under Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
- DDRC SRL Diagnastics Private Lirmited Juint venture entity
- Spectrum Voyages Private Limited (formery known as Ligare Fellow subsidiary company

Travels PVL. Ltd,)

- Fortis Charitable Foundation Feliow subsidiary eompany
- RHC Holding Private Limited Fellow subsidiary company
- HealthFore Technologies Limited Fellow subsidiary company

B. Transactions with related partiss during the year
Year ended Year anded

—31March 3018 __31 March 2017
; (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
(i} Rendering of services:

{a) SRL Limited 328.40 220.33
{b) DDRC SRL Dlagnostics Private Limited 148.55 145.29
476.95 365.62

{ii} Recziving of services )
(a) SRL Limited 526.52 506.25
{b) DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited - 0.04
(e} Spectrum Voyages Private Limited (formerly known as Ligars Traveis Limited) - 6.60
{d) RHC Holding Private Limited 73.89 94,97
() HealthFore Technelogles Limited 10.93 -
611.34 6507.66

(lii) Reimbursement of expensas pald

{a) SRL Limited 34.17 74.48
(b} Fortis Charitable Foundatian 3.98 -
38.15 74.48

(iv) Reimbursement of expenses received
(a} SRL Limited 3.03 34.72

(v} Purchase of intangible assets
(&) HealthFore Technologies Limited 25.60 =

{vi) Loans taken
{2) SRL Limited = 1,500.00

{vil} Loans repaid
: {(a) SRL Limited 2,400.00 3,600.00

(viil) Loans given
{a) Fortis Healthcare Limited - 400.00

(ix) Interest expense
(@) SRL Limited 1,952.98 2,209.54

{®) Interestincome
(3) Fortis Healthcare Limited : 46.00 24.83

[xi) Purchase of property, plant and equipment

{a) SRL Limited 1.69 &
(xii) Provision for doubtful advances
{a) RMC Halding Private Limitad 24.97 E
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Balances outstanding at the year end : As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Rupeeas in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Loan outstanding balance

{28} SRL Limited 14,800.00 17,200.00
Loans given to Related parties
{a) Fortis Healthcare Limited 400.00 400,00
Interest accruad on inter-corporate deposits
(a) Fortis Healthcare Limited 10.21 10.21
10.21 10.21
Interest accrued and due on borrowing
{a} SRL Limited 396.43 =
396.43 -
Trade receivables
(a) SRL Limited 59.80 53.30
{b} DDRC SRL Diagnostics Privete LUimited 11.49 10.599
71.29 654,29
Trade payables
{a) SRL Limited 59.07 90.71
(b} Spectrum Voveges Private Limitsc (formerly known as Ligare Travels Limitad) 0.29 0.37
53.36 9i.08
Advances recoverable
(a) Fortis Healthcare Limited 18.74 18.74
(b} RHC Holding Private Limited 24.97 =
43,71 18.74
Provision for doubtful advances
(8) RHC Holding Private Limited 24.97 -
24.87 -
COther transactions

Cash credit facility from a bank utilized Rs. 335,72 Lakhs {31 March 2017: Rs. Nil) is guaranteed by a corporate puaraniee of SEL Limited, the
halding company.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sale to and purchase from related parties are made on terme equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding
balances &t year end are unsecured, and interest free and settelment occurs In cash, There has been na gurantees provided or received from any
related party recelvables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has recorded Rs. 24.97 Lakhs as provisicn towards
recelvables refating to amounts owned by related parties (31 March 2017, Re. Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financlal assumptions 2nd the market in which the related parties operates,

Loens granted are intended to meet the working capital requirment. The |oans are unsecured and repayable in full on demand. Interest is charged
at 11.50% p.a.

Related party relationships are as identified by the Mansgementof the Holding Company taking Into account the findings and limitations in the
Investigation Report (Refer Motes 44 (d) below) and the information availabia with the Management. In this regard, in the absence of specific
declarations from the erstwhile directors on their compliance with disclasures of related parties, especislly considering the substance of the
relationship rather than the legal form, the rolated parties heve been Identified based on Lhe declarations by the erstwhile directors of the Halding
Company and the infarmation available through the known sharsholding pattern in the entities, Therefore, there may be additional related partics
whase refationship may not have been disclosed to the Company and, hence, nat knovm to the Management.
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7.

(i)

(ii)

38.

39.

Leases

As leszen

Operating Leases

Labs, Offices, Godowns and Guest houses

The Company has chtained lab premises, office premises, godowns and guest houses on operating lease arrangements. The lease terms varies
from 11 months to 10 years, renewabie at the option of the Company. There are escalation clauses which is ranging from 5% to 15%. There are
no restrictions impased by entering into the lease arrangements.,

Lab equipments

Certain lab equipments are obtained under operating leases. The leaze pericd varies between 11 months to 10 years, There Is no escalation clayse
in the lease agreements. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease sgreements. There are no sub-leasas.

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Lease expense for the year 1,156.97 1,017.53
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable lease agreements;

-Mat later than one year 251.49 22323

-Later than one year and not later than five years BGR3.06 563.40

-Later than five years 445.08 260,86

_— e L563.61 105649

Accounting on Reagent Rental Equipments

The company has undertaken various agreements wih equipment manufacturer suppliers. As per agreements, the Company will get equipment’s
free of cost and reagents have to be purchased from those specific vendors aniy. The Company has assessed the conditions as specified In the
IncAS -17 for determining whether the sald arrangement [s under operating lease or Finance lease. Basis the evaluation of casa the nature of
Lease cannot be determined hence SEL conlinue to treat the purchase of Reagant in Consumption cost with no element of rental/ interest therein,

Commitments
As at As at
21 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Commitrments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 216.45 B2.24

The Company has cther commitments, for purchase/sales orders which are issued after considering requiremants per eperating cycle for purchase
/ sale of services, employee’s benefits, The Company does not have any long terrm commitments or material non-cancellable contractual
commitments/ contracts.

Contingent liabilities
The Company has given bank guarantee of Rs. 4.75 Lakhs. (31 March 2017: Rs. 16.25 Lakhs),

The company has disputed the coverage of Employees State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) for its Kolkata unit from inception till November 2002
as "Pathlabs” were not covered for Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC). Pending outcome of the hearing, an amount of Rs. 126,53
Lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs. 109.03 Lakhs) has been provided in the boaks from the period commencing December 01, 2000 being the date from
which the ESIC sent a notice claiming fiability of ESIC on subsidiary company Kolkata unit.

The company is currently under litigztion with the Income tax department against an income tax demands of Rs, 2071.32 Lakhs on account of
disallowances on account of expenditure for Assessment year 2014-15. An appeal before CIT(A)} has been filed in this regard. The management
based on its internal evaluation and advice obtained from its tax advisors is of the opinion that the demand is not tenable and does not expect any
economic gutflow. The company has pald Rs. 906 Lakhs under protest as at 31 March 2018,

The company is currently under litigation with the Income tax departtment against an income tax demands of Rs. 4072.22 Lakhs on account of
disallowances on account of expenditure for Assessment year 2015-16. An appeal before CIT(A) has been filed in this regard In the month af
January 2018. The management based on its internal evaluation and advice ohtained from its tax advisors ks of the apinion that the demand is not
tenable and does not expect any accnomic outflow, The company has paid Rs.815 Lakhs under protest as at 31 March 2018,

Besides the contingent liabilities mentioned above, the Company has also received various cthers claims for consumer cases, labour cases and civil
cases etc., the amount of which is not ascertainable.
In respect of above, future cash eutflows in respect of contingent liabllities are determinable only on receipt of judgments pending at various
farums/ authorities.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were an

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investar Education and Protectio
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(a)

(b)

=
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Employea benafits plans

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying smployees,

Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of
Rs.151.92 Lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs.210.01 Lakhs) for Provident fund contributions,

the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The

Company recognised

H5.73.26 Lakhs (31 March 2017: Rupees in Lakhs 37.03) for

emoyee state insurance schame contributions in the Statement of Profit and Logs The contriputions payabie to these plans by the Company are at rates

specified in the rules of the Schermes.,
Defined benefit plans

The Company sponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employess, viz, gratuity. The scheme is funded with an insurance

company in the form

of gualifying msurance policy. Every employee who has campleted at least fve vears of service gets 3 gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary

for each completed year of service subject to & maximum of R3.20 Lakhs (31

These plans typically expose the Company to actuanizl risks such as: invectrment risk, Interest rate nisk, longevity risk and salary risk,

Investment risk
reference to market ylelds 2t the end of the reparting period on government bonds.

March 2017: Rs.10 Lakhs) in berms of Provisions of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The present value of the defined benafit plan lability s caloulated using a discount fate which is datermined by

Interest risk A decresse in the bond interest rate will ncrease the plan lisbility; however, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan‘s debl instruments.

Longevity risk The present vaiue of the defined benefit plan Hability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and zfter their employment. An increase in the fife expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

Salary risk The present value of the defined Denelit plan labliity Is calculated by reference o the future salaries of plan

participants. As such, an incresse in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liahilily,

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarlal valustion of the plan assals and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out ac at
31 March 2018 by the Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Indiz, Mz, N, Seethakemari. The present valee of the defined benefit obligation and the related

current senvice cost and past servioe cost, were measured using the aroected unit credit method.

21 March 2018 31 March 2017
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of acturial valuation were as follows:
Discount rate 7.51% B.66%
Employes attrition rate
Upto 30 years 33% p.a. 33% p.a,
30-45 years 15% p.&. 15% p.a,
45 vears and above 6% p.a. 5% p.a,

Indian Assured Lives
2006-08 Ultimate

Muortality rate

Indian Assured Lives -
2006-08 LAtimate

Expected rate of salary increasa B6.50% 6505
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Statement of profit and loss {Rupees in Lakhs)

Sarvice cost

{Rupees in Lakhs)

Current service cost 62,64 B4,00
Past service cost 3891 :
Interest cost on net defined benefit obligation 12.49 9.72
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Statement Profit or Loss 114.04 73.72
Remeasuremant on the net defined benefit liability:
Acturial gain or loss arising from changes in financial assumptions {23.57) 21.B4
Effect of experience adjustments {4.15) 27.71
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included In net interest expense) 4.99 {21.93)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income {22.73) 27.62
91.31 101.34

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in
in the Statement of profit and loss. The remeasuremeant of the net defined benep{ ;
¥ e

Ty

pded Inother comprehensive income.
=)

Chiintos g
ATTOu g _Jc.'-:_!,l'

e
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efits expense’ and 'Finance costs' line tem respectively
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41.

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance sheet
Details of Provision for gratuity
Present value of funded defined benafit obligation 554.92 473.07
Falr value of plan assets (279.20) [269.36)
Met liability arising from defined benefit obligation 275.72 203,81
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obiigation 473.07 419,98
Current service cost 5264 64.00
Past service cost 3B.91 -
Total gratuity expenses (refer note 30} 101.55 &40
Interest cost 30.75 28.45
Remeasurment (gains)/ ossas

-Acturial gain or loss arising from changss in financial Assumptions (23.57) 21.84

-Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (4.15) 2171
Banefit payments

-Benefit payments from plan assets {3.34) [5.82)

-Banefit payments from employer (19.29) (B2.10]
Closing defined benefit obligation 554.92 473.07
Mavement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Opening fair value of plan assets 269.27 225.33
Inzerest income 18.26 18.75
Return an plan assets {excluding interest income) (4.99) 21.93
Conlributions from the employer

-Contributions from the emplaver 10.08

-Direct benefit payments from employer 19.39 2210
Benefit payments

-Benefit payments from plan assels (3.349) (6.82)

-Benefit payments from amployer {19.349) [82.10)
Closing fair value of plan 2ssets 279.20 269.27

The plen assets of the Company 2% on the Balance sheet date are fully invested in Insurer Managed Funds. The details of investments maintained by LIC
are not made available to the Company and therefore has rot bean disclosed,

Significant actuanial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and attrition rate. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumplions cocurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding 88 other assurmptions constant,

As at As at
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
If the discount rate is 100 basis paints higher 523.20 442.04
If the discount rate is 100 basis polnts lower 550,54 508.52
If the expected salary growth increases by 1% 587.50 504 .44
IF the expected salary growth decreases by 1% 525.52 444.90
IF attrition rate increases by 1% 556.31 472.96
If attrition rate decreases by 1% 553.29 473.009

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it s unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isclation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projectsd unit credit methad at the eng of reparting period, which
I5 the same as that applied in calculating the defined henefit obligation liabllity recognised in the Balance Sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anafysis from prior years,
The Company expects to maks & contribution of Rs, 168.71 Lakhs (31 March 2017: 117.65 Lakhs) to the defined benefit plans during the nexl financial
YEar.
The defined benefit plars shall mature after year end 31 March 2018 as follows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Expected total benefits Defined benefit obligation

As at 31 March 2019 127.04
As at 31 March 2020 54.55
As at 31 March 2021 43,02
Ag at 31 March 2022 58.15
As at 31 March 2023 36.24
Thereafter 16217

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2018 5 6 years (31 March 2017: 5 years).
The estimate of future salary increa :i'.gq}_:ﬁqrgg, takes into account the Inflation, seniority, promaotien and other relevant Factors,

Experience adjustments As at As at
ch 201 31 2017
(Rupeas in Lakhs) {Rupees in Lakhs)
Experience adjustments [4.15) 27.71

W w I
s Company is required to spend at least 2% of the average net profit of past three
expenses, as certified by Management, are as follows:

As per section 135 of the Companies Qﬁl‘;l. he rules th

il Iy
years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). Details of

Yaoar ended Year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupess in Lakhs)
Balance to be spent as per previous year [A) - -
Amount required to be spent for the current year (B) 11.84 -
Gross amount required to be spent = (A+B) 11.84 =
Amount spent during the year (refer note 33) 3.98 -

Balance unspent at the end of the year 7.B6
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a2,

S2A.

Financial Instrumeants
Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company will be able to continue as going concerns from its parent Company, SAL Limited. The source of
capital in the Company is through Its parent. Also the long-term Lorrowing is from its parent Company which carries rabe of interest @ 1294 p.a. which is
considered to be on arm’s length basis. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detalled in notes 18, 22 and offeat by cash
and cash equivalerls) and total equity of the Company. The Company manages its capltal structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
SLONOMIC envirarment and the requiremants of the financial covenants,

The Company is not subject to any externalky Impesed capital requirements,

The Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on periodic basis. As part of this review, the committee considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each dass of capital.

The gearing ratic at end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

[(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)
Debt (i) 14,310.44 16,200.00
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) {1,145.05) (1,010.81)
Mat debt (A) 13,165.39 15,189,189
Total equity {B) 571.11 [1.673.39]
Met debt te equity ratio {A/B) 2305.23%

(1} Dbt 15 defined &5 long-term and short-term borrowings (refar note 18 & 22)

Borrowing covenants

Under the term of borrowing facility, the Company Is required to comply with the fodlowing covenants:

Outstanding in the cash credit account shall be beought ko zero at least orce in a year. The: Company Is complied with the condition.

Financial risk management obiectives and policies

The Company’s financial assets includes trade recelvables, other recelvables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from it's cperation. The
Company’s principal financial labilites comprise trade payables, other payablas and borrowings. The main purpose of these financial Babilities is to finance
the company’s opearation. The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments.

{a) Cradit risk
(b)) Market risk
{c) Liquidity risk

The Company's board of directors manages the financial risk of the company thraugh internal nsk raport which #nalyse exposure by magnitude of risk,

(&) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party ko a financial instrument fails to meet it's contractual obligation and
arises principaily for the company receivable from customers. An impairment analysis is performed st each reporting date on an individual basis for major
clients. The Caompany hold certain amount as colfateral in form of security deposit against certain class of receivable (primarily Includes receivable from
collection centre). The Company's exposure to credit risk is influendad mainly by the Individual characteristics and credit worthiness of each customer.
Fusther refer note 11 for a summary of company’s most significant cutomers and details an provisien for expected credit boss,

(b} Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of fubure earmings, risk of loss due to change in interest rates, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change
in the price of financial instrument, The value of a francdial Instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments,

"Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, forelgn curreny receivables or payables, The
company operztes a small segment of his business in international market and consequently is exposed to forelgn exchange risk through it's sales and
services and ourchases from overseas sunoliers in varlous foreian currencies.

{i) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rabe risk because the Company borrow funds at bath fixed and fioating interast ratas. The risk is managed by the
Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. As on 31 M -"="‘"~: Company has any borrowings from SRL
Limited (helding company) and cash credit facility from katak mahindra bank, the interest rate Auckss nsignificant to the size and operations of
the Company, therefore, a change in interest rate risk does not have a material impact on the ghnan i atements in relation to fair value of
financial instruments.

¢ 3
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Interest rate sansitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the sipos,

¢ lo interest rates ot the end of the reporting period. For ficating rate liabilities,

the analysis is prepared assuming the amaount of the liabilivy outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding far the whole year.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk intemally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonebly possible change In interest rates.

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

If increase by 50 basis point
Impact an profit or loss for the year 2.55 #

Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {2.55) =
If decrease by 50 basis point

Impact on profit or loss for the year [2.55)

Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period 2.55

{€) Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligation associates with it's financal liabllities that are setteld Ly
delivering cash, The Comparny's ultimate responsibility for liguidity risk mansgement rests with the board of directors, which has established an approgriate
liquidity risk management framework of the company's short-term, mediem-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking (acilities and reserve borrowing facliities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching tha maturity profiles of financial essets and labilities. Note given below sets put details of additional undrawn
facilities that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce fiquidity risk.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalent and cash fow that is generated from operations. In addition the Company has
secured funding facilities aggregating to Rs. 1,500 Lakhs which can be drawn to ragel short term financial needs. The Company mangemant manitors rolling
forcast of Company's liquidity requirment to ensure |t has suficent rash (o meet opefational need while maintaining sufficient headroom on IEs undrawn
committed borrowing facility at all times so that the Company does not breach the berrowing limits or covenants.

Financial arrangement:
The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period.
{Rupees in Lakhs)

As at As &t
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Sanction limit  Limit utilised Sanction limit Lirnit utilised
Cash credit facility, Letter of credit, and Bank guarantes 1,500.00 390.47 1,500.00 16.25
1,500.00 300.47 1,500.00 16.25

The following tables detall the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The
taies have been drawn up basad on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based en the earllest date on which the company can be reéquired to
pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest Aows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
Interest rate curves at the end of the reporting perind,

{Rupees in Lakhs)

0-1 year 1-2 years ”“;'E:"r:" 5 Total Amount Carrying Amount
31 March, 2018
Mon Interest bearing instruments 107.98 2,890.07 - 3,007.05 3,007.05
Fixed Intarest bearing instruments & 16.576.00 - 16,576.00 14,800,000
31 March, 2017
Non Interest bearing Instruments 104.78 3.129.85 - 3.234.63 1.842.63
Fixed interest rate instruments - 19,264.00 - 19,264.00 17,200.00

The Company expects to mest its other obligations from operating cash flows and proc s of maturing financial assets,
W& :
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As at As at
_31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs)

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterpriscs 85 per MSMED Act, 2006

The principal ameunt remaining unpaid a5 at the end of year 1.41 1.15

Interest due on above principal and remaining unpaid as at the end of the year =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small = i
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 slong with the amounts of the

payment made to the suppller beyond the appeinted day during each accounting

year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay In making paymeant 0.24 0.19
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the yaar) but  without

adding the Interest spedfied under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development

Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each sccounting 0.24 0.19
year

The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding = =
years, until such date when the Interest dues as above are actualiy pald to the small

enterprise for the purpose of disallowance #s a deductible expenditure under section

23 of the Micro Small end Medium Enterprise Dovelopment A, 2006

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information collectad by
the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Investigation initiated by the Audit 2nd Risk Management Commities of Ultimate Holding Company

There were reports in the media and enquiries from inter alia the stock exchanges received by the Ultimate Holding Company (Fortis Healtheare
Limited, "FHL") about certain Inter-corporate loans (“ICDs") given by a whally owned subsidiary {Fortls Hospitals Limited, 'FHsL') of the Ultimate
Holding Company. The erstwhile Audit and Risk Management Committee of the FHL in its meeting on 13 February, 2018 decided to carry out an
independent investigation through an external legal firm.

The terms of reference of the Investigation, inter alia, comprised (I} ICDs placed by Fortls Hospitals Limited, with three borrowing companies as on
1 July 2017; (i} the assignment of these ICDs to a third party and the subsequent cancellation thereof as well as evaluation of legal notice (now a
civil suit) received from such third perty (refer note 46 below); (iil) review of intra-group transactlons for the period commencing FY 2014-15 and
ending on 31 December 2017 ; (iv) investments made in certain averseas funds by the overseas subsidiaries of the Company (l.e, Fortis Asia
Healthcare Fte. Ltd, Singapore and Fortis Global Healthcare {Mauritius) Limited; (v) certain other transactions involving acquisition of Fortis
Healthstaff Limited ("Fortis Healthstaff™) from a promoter group companies, and subsequent repayment of loan by sald subsidiary to the promoter
group company.

The Investigation report ("Investigation Report”) was submitted to the Board of Ultimate Holding Company on 8 June, 2018,

The re-constituted Board of the Ultimate Holding Company discussed and considered the Investigation Report and noted certain findings of the
external legal firm relating to the Company, which are subject to the limitations on the information avallable to the external legal firm and their
qualifications and disclaimers as described in their investigation repart. In this regard, the investigation pointed out that in internal correspondence,
transactions with certain entities have been referred to as related party transactions which were not part of the Related Party Transactions as
disclosed by the Company. However, no further conclusions have heen made, in this regard. The investigation did not cover all related party
transactions during the period under Investigation and focused on identifying undisclosed parties having direct/indirect relationship with the
Fromoter group, if any,

Cther matters:

As per the assessment of the Board of the Ultimate Holding Company and the Company, based on the investigation carried out through the external
legal firm, and the infermation avallable at this stage, all identified/required adjustments/disclosures arising from the findings in the Investigation
Report, have been made in these Ind AS Financial Statements. With respect to the other matters Identified in the Investigation Report, the Board
will appoint an external agency of repute to undertake a scrutiny of the internal controls and compliance framework in order to strengthen
processes and build a robust governance framework. Towards this end, they will 2lso evaluate internal organisational structure and reporting lines,
the delegation of powers of the Board or any committee thereof, the roles of authorised representatives and terms of reference of executive
committees and their functional role. We will also assess the additional requisite steps to be taken in relation to the significant matters identified in
the Investigation Report, including Inter alia, initiating an Internal enquiry.
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The regulatory authorities are currently undertaking their ovn investigation (refer note 45 below), and It is likeiy that they may make their
determinaticn on whether any fraud or any other non-compliance/ ilegalities have ococurred in refation o the matters addressed In the
Investigation Report on the basis of facts, including those facts that the independent Investigator would not have had access to, given their limited
role and limitations stated in the Investigation Report. Accordingly, in light of the foregoing, the Board of Directors at this juncture is unable to
make a determination on whether & fraud has occurred. That said, the Board of Directors is committed to fully co-operating with the relevant
regulatory autharitles to enable them to make a determination on these matters and to undertake the remedial action, a5 required under, and [0
ensure compliance with, appiicable laws and regulations.

Except for the findings of the Investigation Repert, including matzers on internal control described above, and inability of the Board of Directors to,
at this juncture, make & determination on whether a fraud has occurred on the Company considering the limitations on the infermation available to
the external legal firm and thelr gualifications and disclaimers as described in their Investigation Report, proper and sufficient care has been taken
for the maintenznce of adequate accounting records in sccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. In the event other exposures were to come to light, the Company Is committed to
appropriately addressing the same, Including making additional provisiens where required,

Any further adjustments/ disciosures, if required, would be made in the books of account pursuant to the above actions to be taken by the Board/
regulatory Investigations as and when the outcome of the above is known.

Investigation by Regulatory Authorities:

The Ultimate Holding Company received a communication dated 16 February, 2018 from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
confirming that an investigation has been Instituted by SEBI in the matter of the Ultimate Holding Company, In the aforesaid letter, SEBI has
summoned the Ultimate Helding Company under section 11C (3) of the SEBI Act, 1992 to furnish by 26 February, 2018 certaln information and
documents relating to the short-term Investments of Rupees 473 Crores reported In the medla. Fallure to produce the information required for
investigation could result in penzlties as provided under section 154 and criminal proceedings under section 11C{6) of the SEBI Act, 1992, SEBI has
also appointed forensic auditors to conduct a forensic audit, wha are also In the process of collating information from the Udmate Holding Company
and certain other subsidiaries, Including the Company. The Ulimate Holding Company Is the process of furnishing all the requisite information and
documents requested by SEBI and its forensic auditors.

The Registrar of Companies (ROC) under section 206(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, had also scught information in relation to the
Uttimate Holding Company. All requisite infermation In this regard has been duly shared by the Ultimate Holding Company with the ROC.

The Ultimate Holding Company has alse received a letter from the Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO), Ministry of Corporate Affairs under
section 217{1}{a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Inter alia, initiating an Investigation and seeking information in relation to the Ultimate Holding
Company, |ts material subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Ulimate Holding Company In the process of submitting all requisits
Information in this regard with SFIO and has In this regard has requested SFIO for additional time to submit the infarmation.

Further, the Investigation Report has been submitted by the Ultimate Holding Company with the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the
Serious Frauds Investigation Office ("SFIQ™) on 12 June, 2018,

The Ultimate Helding Cempany is fully co-gperating with the regulators In relation to the ongoing investigations to enable them to make their
determination on these matters, Any further adjustments/disclosures, if required, would be made in these Ind AS financlal statements as and when
the outcome of the above investigations is known,
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46. A thira party ("Assignee” or “Clalmant”) has filed a Civil Sult before the District Court, Delhi in February 2018 against various group entities
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including the Helding Company (together “the defendants") and have, inter alia, ctaimed implied ownerships of brands "SRL" ("Fortis" and “La-
Femme" of the helding company) in additien to certain financial claims and for passing a decree that consequent to a term sheet dated 6 December
2017 {"Term Sheet') with a certain party, the defendants are lisble for calms owed by the claimant to the certain party. In connection with this, the
District Court passed an ex-parte order directing that any transaction taken by defendants in favour of any other party affecting the interest of the
Claimant shell be subject to orders passed In the said sult, (@lse refer note 44 above!

The Holding Company has filed written statement denying all ailegations mzde against it and prayed for dismissal of the Civil Suit on various legat
and factugl grounds. The Holding Company has specifically denled Hability to pay any amounts to the Claimant, including its alleged claim that the
Claimant has rights over the aforesaid brands.

In addition to the above, the Ultimate Helding Company has aiso received four notices from the Claimant claiming (I} Rupees 1,800 lakhs as per

notices dated 30 May 2018 and 1 June 2018 (i) Rupees 21,582 lakhs ac por notice dated 4 June 2018; and (i) Rupees 1,962 lekhs as per notice
dated 4 June 2018. All these notices have been responded to by the Ulimate Holding Company denying any llability whatsoover.

Separately, certain party has also alleged rights to invest In the Ultimate Holding Company. It has also alleged failure on part of the Ultimate
Holding Company to abide by the aforementioned Term Sheet and has claimed cwnership aver the brands as well,

Based on the legal advice of the external legal counsel obtained by the Ultimate Holding Company, the Company belleves that the claims are naot
tenable and accordingly, no adjustment Is required in the Ind AS Financial Statements with respect to thesa claims.

The matter was also included as part of Investigation carried out by an external legal firm at Ulimate Haolding company. The external legal firm did
not report on the merits of the case since the matter was sub-judice,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
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